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Dear Chair 
I refer to the Committee’s inquiry into the examination, publication and use of Cabinet 
documents by Legislative Council committees.  
I note that, in discussions between the A/Deputy Secretary, General Counsel of the Department 
of Premier and Cabinet, and Ms Jenelle Moore of the Committee’s Secretariat on 14 January 
2022, the Department requested a short extension of time for the Department to lodge this 
submission. I am advised that this request was accepted, for which I am grateful. 
As the custodian of the official Cabinet records of the State, the Department wishes to make a 
whole of government submission in the form of Annexures A and B to this letter. 
Annexures A and B are copies of submissions made by the Department to the Public 
Accountability Committee’s inquiry into the Transport Asset Holding Entity (the TAHE Inquiry). 
The submissions were made in circumstances where the Department had become aware of the 
publication and use of certain Cabinet documents that been disclosed without the authority of 
the Premier or Cabinet. 
Neither the House nor any of its committees has the power to call for production of Cabinet 
documents. If Cabinet documents are disclosed to a committee without the authorisation of the 
Premier or Cabinet, they should be immediately returned to the Department of Premier and 
Cabinet as the custodian of the official Cabinet records of the State. 
In the Department’s submissions to the Public Accountability Committee, the Department 
requested that copies of certain Cabinet documents be removed from the Parliament’s website, 
and any copies returned to the Department. In its Special report on the examination, publication 
and use of Cabinet documents by Legislative Council committees as part of an inquiry dated 
November 2021, the Public Accountability Committee stated that it had not resolved to agree to 
the request, pending further consideration of the matter by the Privileges Committee.  
The Department’s request in relation to the documents identified in the Secretary’s letter dated 
22 October 2021 therefore remains outstanding. I am taking the opportunity to repeat the 
Department’s request that those Cabinet documents be removed from the Parliament’s website, 
and for all digital copies to be destroyed and hard copies returned to the Department.  
This submission is not confidential and may be published.  
  







52 Martin Place, Sydney NSW 2000  GPO Box 5341, SYDNEY NSW 2001 
 Tel: (02) 9228 5555  www.dpc.nsw.gov.au 

Ref: A5159073 

Mr David Shoebridge MLC 
Chair, Public Accountability Committee 
Legislative Council 
Parliament House 
Macquarie Street 
SYDNEY  NSW  2000 

By email: public.accountability@parliament.nsw.gov.au 

Dear Chair 

Thank you for your letter dated 26 October 2021, received on 27 October 2021, inviting the 
Department to provide further information by way of written submissions in relation to the 
Department’s request that certain Cabinet documents be removed from the Committee’s website 
and not used or disclosed any further by the Committee. 

In addition to the matters set out in my letter of 22 October 2021, the Department makes the 
following observations. 

Each document identified in my letter of 22 October 2021 contains Cabinet information and is 
subject to Cabinet confidentiality.  

I am advised that their disclosure to the Committee, directly or indirectly, was not authorised by 
the Premier or the Cabinet, who are the only persons who may authorise the disclose of Cabinet 
documents. 

The paramount importance of protecting the confidentiality of Cabinet documents is firmly 
established. In Sankey v Whitlam (1978) 142 CLR 1 at 38-39 at 39, Gibbs ACJ stated: 

[T]he law recognizes that there is a class of documents which in the public interest should be
immune from disclosure. The class includes cabinet minutes and minutes of discussions between
heads of departments . . . papers brought into existence for the purpose of preparing a submission to
cabinet . . . and indeed any documents which relate to the framing of government policy at a high
level. According to Lord Reid, the class would extend to ‘all documents concerned with policy making
within departments including, it may be, minutes and the like by quite junior officials and
correspondence with outside bodies’: Conway v. Rimmer [1968] AC 910 at 952.

In Conway v Rimmer [1968] AC 910 at 952, Lord Reid said: 

I do not doubt that there are certain classes of documents which ought not to be disclosed whatever 
their content may be. Virtually everyone agrees that Cabinet minutes and the like ought not to be 
disclosed until such time as they are only of historical interest … To my mind the most important 
reason is that such disclosure would create or fan ill-informed or capricious public or political 
criticism. The business of government is difficult enough as it is, and no government could 
contemplate with equanimity the inner workings of the government machine being exposed to the 
gaze of those with some axe to grind.  And that must, in my view, apply to all documents concerned 
with policy making within departments … 

ANNEXURE B






